Firefly Property Owners Association, Inc. Board Meeting April 14, 2021

Location:

Firefly Cove Lake Lure, North Carolina - The Lodge

Roll Call/Call to Order:

- The meeting was called to order by Melva Dye at 6:00 pm
- > Directors present: Joy Ciocca, Melva Dye, Al Joyner and Tim Schellenberger
- > Directors present by phone: None
- Directors Absent: Mark Helms
- Property Owners present: Joe Pritchett
- Property Owners present by phone: Mike Kirkman

Quorum:

> There being a sufficient number of Board members present a quorum was established.

Approval of Minutes:

➤ The minutes from the Firefly Cove Board meetings of March 24, 2021 were approved by motion, second, and a unanimous vote 3-0.

Property Owners Input/Comments/Concerns

None

Updates:

- ➤ Melva Dye reported the balances as of April 14, 2021; Operating account balance is \$40,394.51. 43 Lots have paid the 2nd Quarter Dues. All Boat Slip and Kayak Rack payments have been received.
- Melva Dye requested the board go into Executive Session at 6:02pm and ended at 6:10pm.

Discussion Items:

A discussion was had as to which open board seats the new directors would fill. It was decised that Al Joyner would fill the seat vacated by Mike Kirkman, his term will expire October 2023 and

Tim Schellenberger would fill the seat vacated by Mike Frosaker, his term will expire October 2022. A motion was made and seconded to appoint Al Joyner and Tim Schellenberger to fill the two vacant seats, the motion passed by a vote of 3-0.

- A discussion was had regarding the offer received on April 11, 2021 to purchase Lot 56. A motion was made and seconded to accept the offer, with the discussed changes to number 4 of the Additional Provisions Addendum. The motion passed by a vote of 4–0. Secretary Ciocca will sign the offer and send back to the buyer.
- > The date of the next board meeting: TBD

Adjournment:

> The meeting was adjourned at 6:17pm.

Board of Directors
Firefly Cove Property Owners Association, Inc.

Dear Board Members:

Please see the attached offer for lot 56 for consideration by the board. We have included the provisions discussed with Joe Pritchett regarding price and annual dues.

A couple background points that might be helpful:

1) Regarding the needed right of way for shared driveway access: we had a topographical survey prepared on lot 56 that our architect reviewed, he indicated the slope going up from Sheridan Lane at 25 degrees is problematic for driveway access from that direction.

Our attorney has done preliminary title work on the neighboring lots to determine what is needed legally for us to obtain shared driveway access. Based on this work, two neighbors would need to sign off on the agreement (Efird and Hollins). Both have verbally agreed in principle. As part of his agreement, Mr. Hollins has asked that we agree upfront to eventually repave the driveway from Sheridan Lane all the way up to lot 56. For reference, we estimate the current cost of this project would be about \$10,000. Our attorney will handle drafting the road maintenance agreement for Mr. Hollins approval and signature. Mr. Hollins has indicated this would be a condition to anyone buying the lot, and in addition he wants to meet any prospective buyer before agreeing to grant shared driveway access. We have met with him several times and he has said he is willing to grant us access.

2) Regarding sewer access: our preference is to simply tap into Firefly Cove's public sewer. We believe this may be possible to accomplish by tapping into the existing line under the bridge, and we would investigate this alternative during the due diligence period. We would also obtain an estimate of the feasibility and cost of extending a sewer line from lot 56 under the road (Firefly Cove) to the existing hookup on that side. As a fallback, if neither of these alternatives is feasible or permitted by the POA, we would then apply to the county for a septic permit. This would require preparation of more detailed architectural plans for our future home than we currently have. We understand that the POA cannot obtain a septic approval for us based on the county's detailed requirements on their septic permit application. What we are trying to avoid is a situation where sewer access is not allowed or feasible, and then septic is later denied for some reason by the county.

We appreciate the opportunity to present this offer and look forward to working with the Board on the necessary steps to complete the sale. If there are any questions or clarifications, please feel free to call or email us. Thanks to all for your help.

Sincerely,

Bill & Danelle Hansen

OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT - VACANT LOT/LAND

For valuable consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Buyer offers to purchase and Seller upon acceptance agrees to sell and convey the Property on the terms and conditions of this Offer To Purchase and Contract and any addendum or modification made in accordance with its terms (together the "Contract").

- 1. TERMS AND DEFINITIONS: The terms listed below shall have the respective meaning given them as set forth adjacent to each term.
 - (a) "Seller": Firefly Cove Property Owners Association, Inc.
 - (b) "Buyer": William S. Hansen and Danelle A. Hansen, or assigns
 - (c) "Property": The Property shall include all that real estate described below together with all appurtenances thereto.

Street Address: Lot 56 Firefly Cove, Common Area

City: Lake Lure, NC Zip:28746 County: Rutherford, North Carolina

Legal Description: (Complete *ALL* applicable)
Plat Reference: Plat Book <u>28</u> at Page(s) <u>285</u>

The PIN/PID or other identification number of the Property is: 1643116 Some or all of the Property may be described in Deed Book 1030 at Page 260

(d) "Purchase Price":

\$_70,000.00	paid in U.S. Dollars upon the following terms:
\$	BY DUE DILIGENCE FEE made payable to Seller
\$ <u>1,000.00</u>	BY INITIAL EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT made payable to Escrow Agent named
	in Paragraph 1(f) with this offer by \square cash X personal check \square official bank check
	other:
\$ N/A	BY (ADDITIONAL) EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT made payable to Escrow Agent named in Paragraph 1(f) by cash or immediately available funds such as official bank check or wire transfer to be delivered to Escrow Agent no later than
	. TIME
	BEING OF THE ESSENCE with regard to said date.
\$ N/A	BY ASSUMPTION of the unpaid principal balance and all obligations of Seller on
	the existing loan(s) secured by a deed of trust on the Property in accordance with the attached Loan Assumption Addendum (Standard Form 2A6-T).
\$N/A	BY SELLER FINANCING in accordance with the attached Seller Financing
	Addendum (Standard Form 2A5-T).
\$ 69,000	BALANCE of the Purchase Price in cash at Settlement (some or all of which may be paid with the proceeds of a new loan)

Should Buyer fail to deliver either the Due Diligence Fee or any Initial Earnest Money Deposit by the Effective Date or should any check or other funds paid by Buyer be dishonored, for any reason, by the institution upon which the payment is drawn, Buyer shall have one (1) banking day after written notice to deliver good funds to the payee. In the event Buyer does not timely deliver good funds, Seller shall have the right to terminate this Contract upon written notice to Buyer.

(e) "Earnest Money Deposit": The Initial Earnest Money Deposit, the Additional Earnest Money Deposit and any other earnest monies paid in connection with this transaction, hereinafter collectively referred to as "Earnest Money Deposit", shall be deposited and held in escrow by Escrow Agent until Closing, at which time it will be credited to Buyer, or until this Contract is otherwise terminated. In the event: (1) this offer is not accepted; or (2) a condition of any resulting contract is not satisfied, then the Earnest Money Deposit shall be refunded to Buyer. In the event of breach of this Contract by Seller, the Earnest Money Deposit shall be refunded to Buyer upon Buyer's request, but such return shall not affect any other remedies available to Buyer for such breach. In

{12407873} Buyer initials	DH	Seller initials	

the event of breach of this Contract by Buyer, the Earnest Money Deposit shall be paid to Seller upon Seller's request as liquidated damages and as Seller's sole and exclusive remedy for such breach, but without limiting Seller's rights under Paragraphs 2(c) and 2(d) for damage to the Property or Seller's right to retain the Due Diligence Fee. It is acknowledged by the parties that payment of the Earnest Money Deposit to Seller in the event of a breach of this Contract by Buyer is compensatory and not punitive, such amount being a reasonable estimation of the actual loss that Seller would incur as a result of such breach. The payment of the Earnest Money Deposit to Seller shall not constitute a penalty or forfeiture but actual compensation for Seller's anticipated loss, both parties acknowledging the difficulty determining Seller's actual damages for such breach. If legal proceedings are brought by Buyer or Seller against the other to recover the Earnest Money Deposit, the prevailing party in the proceeding shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party reasonable attorney fees and court costs incurred in connection with the proceeding.

- (f) "Escrow Agent" (insert name): Deutsch & Gottschalk, PA
- (g) "Effective Date": The date that: (1) the last one of Buyer and Seller has signed or initialed this offer or the final counteroffer, if any, and (2) such signing or initialing is communicated to the party making the offer or counteroffer, as the case may be.
- (h) "Due Diligence": Buyer's opportunity during the Due Diligence Period to investigate the Property and the transaction contemplated by this Contract, including but not necessarily limited to the matters described in Paragraph 2 below, to decide whether Buyer, in Buyer's sole discretion, will proceed with or terminate the transaction.
- (i) "Due Diligence Fee": N/A A negotiated amount, if any, paid by Buyer to Seller with this Contract for Buyer's right to conduct Due Diligence during the Due Diligence Period. It shall be the property of Seller upon the Effective Date and shall be a credit to Buyer at Closing. The Due Diligence Fee shall be non-refundable except in the event of a material breach of this Contract by Seller, or if this Contract is terminated under Paragraph 6(l) or Paragraph 9, or as otherwise provided in any addendum hereto. Buyer and Seller each expressly waive any right that they may have to deny the right to conduct Due Diligence or to assert any defense as to the enforceability of this Contract based on the absence or alleged insufficiency of any Due Diligence Fee, it being the intent of the parties to create a legally binding contract for the purchase and sale of the Property without regard to the existence or amount of any Due Diligence Fee.
- (j) "Due Diligence Period": The period beginning on the Effective Date and extending through 5:00 p.m. Thirty (30) days from Effective Date TIME BEING OF THE ESSENCE with regard to said date.
- (k) "Settlement": The proper execution and delivery to the settlement agent of all documents necessary to complete the transaction contemplated by this Contract, including the deed, settlement statement, deed of trust and other loan or conveyance documents, and the settlement agent's receipt of all funds necessary to complete such transaction.
- (1) "Settlement Date": The parties agree that Settlement will take place on or before Forty-Five (45) days from the Effective Date (the "Settlement Date"), unless otherwise agreed in writing, at a time and place designated by Buyer.
- (m) "Closing": The legal process which results in the transfer of title to the Property from Seller to Buyer. Closing includes the following steps: (1) the Settlement (defined above): (2) the completion of a satisfactory title update to the Property following the Settlement; (3) the settlement agent's receipt of authorization to disburse all necessary funds; and (4) recordation in the appropriate county registry of the deed(s) and deed(s) of trust, if any, which shall take place as soon as reasonably possible for the settlement agent after Settlement. Upon such recordation of the deed(s) and deed(s) of trust, if any, Closing shall be deemed completed and the proceeds of sale shall be disbursed by the settlement agent in accordance with the settlement statement and the provisions of Chapter 45A of the North Carolina General Statutes. If the title update should reveal unexpected liens, encumbrances or other title defects, or if the settlement agent is not authorized to disburse all necessary funds, then the Closing shall be suspended and the Settlement deemed delayed under Paragraph 10 (Delay in Settlement/Closing).
- (n) "Special Assessments": A charge against the Property by a governmental authority in addition to ad valorem taxes or by an owners' association in addition to any regular assessment (dues), either of which may be a lien against the Property. A Special Assessment may be either proposed or confirmed.
- "Proposed Special Assessment": A Special Assessment that is under formal consideration but which has not been approved prior to Settlement.

{12407873} Buyer initials	DH	Seller initials	
			Page 2 of

"Confirmed Special Assessment": A Special Assessment that has been approved prior to Settlement whether or not it is fully payable at time of Settlement.

2. BUYER'S DUE DILIGENCE PROCESS:

- (a) Loan: During the Due Diligence Period, Buyer, at Buyer's expense, shall be entitled to pursue qualification for and approval of the Loan if any.
- (b) **Property Investigation**: During the Due Diligence Period, Buyer or Buyer's agents or representatives, at Buyer's expense, shall be entitled to conduct all desired tests, surveys, appraisals, investigations, examinations and inspections of the Property as Buyer deems appropriate, including but NOT limited to the following:

(i) Soil, Utilities And Environmental: Reports to determine whether the soil is suitable for Buyer's intended use and whether there is any environmental contamination, law, rule or regulation that may prohibit, restrict or limit Buyer's intended use.

(ii) Septic/Sewer System: Any applicable investigation(s) to determine: (1) the condition of an existing sewage system, (2) the costs and expenses to install a sewage system approved by an existing Improvement Permit, (3) the availability and expense to connect to a public or community sewer system, and/or (4) whether an Improvement Permit or written evaluation may be obtained from the County Health Department for a suitable ground absorption sewage system.

(iii) Water: Any applicable investigation(s) to determine: (1) the condition of an existing private drinking water well, (2) the costs and expenses to install a private drinking water well approved by an existing Construction Permit, (3) the availability, costs and expenses to connect to a public or community water system, or a shared private well, and/or (4) whether a Construction Permit may be obtained from the County Health Department for a private drinking water well.

(iv) Review of Documents: Review of the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation, Rules and Regulations, and other governing documents of any applicable owners' association and/or subdivision. If the Property is subject to regulation by an owners' association, it is recommended that Buyer review the completed Owners' Association Disclosure and Addendum (Standard Form 2A12-T) provided by Seller prior to signing this offer.

(v) Appraisals: An appraisal of the Property.

(vi) Survey: A survey to determine whether there are any encroachments on the Property from adjacent properties (fences, driveways, etc.), encroachments from the Property onto adjacent properties, road or utility easements crossing the Property, lack of legal access to a public right-of-way, or indefinite or erroneous legal descriptions in previous deeds to the Property.

(vii) Zoning and Governmental Regulation: Investigation of current or proposed zoning or other governmental regulation that may affect Buyer's intended use of the Property, adjacent land uses, planned or proposed road construction, and school attendance zones.

- (viii) Flood Hazard: Investigation of potential flood hazards on the Property, and/or any requirement to purchase flood insurance in order to obtain the Loan.
- (c) Buyer's Obligation to Repair Damage: Buyer shall, at Buyer's expense, promptly repair any damage to the Property resulting from any activities of Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors, but Buyer shall not be responsible for any damage caused by accepted practices applicable to any N.C. licensed professional performing reasonable appraisals, tests, surveys, examinations and inspections of the Property. This repair obligation shall survive any termination of this Contract.
- (d) Indemnity: Buyer will indemnify and hold Seller harmless from all loss, damage, claims, suits or costs, which shall arise out of any contract, agreement, or injury to any person or property as a result of any activities of Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors relating to the Property except for any loss, damage, claim, suit or cost arising out of pre-existing conditions of the Property and/or out of Seller's negligence or willful acts or omissions. This indemnity shall survive this Contract and any termination hereof.
- (e) **Buyer's Right to Terminate:** Buyer shall have the right to terminate this Contract for any reason or no reason, by delivering to Seller written notice of termination (the "Termination Notice") during the Due Diligence Period (or any agreed-upon written extension of the Due Diligence Period), **TIME BEING OF THE ESSENCE**. If Buyer timely delivers the Termination Notice, this Contract shall be terminated, and the Earnest Money Deposit shall be refunded to Buyer.

(WARNING: If Buyer is not satisfied with the results or progress of Buyer's Due Diligence, Buyer should terminate this Contract, prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, unless Buyer can obtain a written extension from Seller. SELLER IS NOT

{12407873} Buyer initials	OH Seller initials	
		D. 2

OBLIGATED TO GRANT AN EXTENSION. Buyer's failure to deliver a Termination Notice to Seller prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period shall constitute a waiver by Buyer of any right to terminate this Contract based on any matter relating to Buyer's Due Diligence.)

(NOTE: Following the Due Diligence Period, Buyer may still exercise a right to terminate this Contract for any other reason permitted under the terms of this Contract or North Carolina law.)

(f) CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION UNLESS PROVISION IS OTHERWISE MADE IN WRITING.

3. BUYER REPRESENTATIONS:

- (a) Loan: Buyer does not have to obtain a new loan in order to purchase the Property.
- (b) Other Property: Buyer does not have to sell or lease other real property in order to qualify for a new loan or to complete purchase.
- (c) Performance of Buyer's Financial Obligations: To the best of Buyer's knowledge, there are no other circumstances or conditions existing as of the date of this offer that would prohibit Buyer from performing Buyer's financial obligations in accordance with this Contract, except as may be specifically set forth herein.

4. BUYER OBLIGATIONS:

- (a) Owners' Association Fees/Charges: Buyer shall pay any fees required for confirming account payment information on owners' association dues or assessments for payment or proration and any charge made by the owners' association in connection with the disposition of the Property to Buyer, including any transfer and/or document fee imposed by the owners' association. Buyer shall not be responsible for fees incurred by Seller in completing the Owners' Association Disclosure and Addendum (Standard Form 2A12-T).
- (b) Responsibility for Proposed Special Assessments: Buyer shall take title subject to all Proposed Special Assessments disclosed by Seller in Paragraph 5(b), if any.
- (c) Responsibility for Certain Costs: Buyer shall be responsible for all costs with respect to any loan obtained by Buyer, appraisal, title search, title insurance, recording the deed and for preparation and recording of all instruments required to secure the balance of the Purchase Price unpaid at Settlement.

5. SELLER REPRESENTATIONS:

- (a) Ownership: Seller represents that Seller has owned the Property for at least one year.
- (b) Assessments: To the best of Seller's knowledge there are no Proposed Special Assessments except as follows (Insert "None" or the identification of such assessments, if any): None.

Seller warrants that there are no Confirmed Special Assessments except as follows: None.

- (c) Owners' Association(s) and Dues: To best of Seller's knowledge, ownership of the Property X subjects Buyer to regulation by one or more owners' association(s) and governing documents, which impose various mandatory covenants, conditions and restrictions upon the Property and Buyer's enjoyment thereof, including but not limited to obligations to pay regular assessments (dues) and Special Assessments. If there is an owners' association, then an Owners' Association Disclosure and Addendum (Standard Form 2A12-T) shall be completed by Seller, at Seller's expense, and must be attached as an addendum to this Contract.
- (d) Sewage System Permit: (N/A) Seller warrants that the sewage system described in the Improvement Permit attached hereto has been installed, which warranty survives Closing, but makes no further representation as to the system.

{12407873} Buyer initials	Men	04	Seller initials	
				Page 4 of 8

(e) Private Drinking Water Well Permit: (Not Applicable) Seller warrants that a private drinking water well has been installed, which warranty survives Closing, but makes no further representation as to the well. (If well installed after July 1, 2008, attach Improvement Permit hereto.)

6. SELLER OBLIGATIONS:

- (a) Evidence of Title: Seller agrees to use best efforts to deliver to Buyer as soon as reasonably possible after the Effective Date, copies of all title information in possession of or available to Seller, including but not limited to: title insurance policies, attorney's opinions on title, surveys, covenants, deeds, notes and deeds of trust and easements relating to the Property. Seller authorizes (1) any attorney presently or previously representing Seller to release and disclose any title insurance policy in such attorney's file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys; and (2) the Property's title insurer or its agent to release and disclose all materials in the Property's title insurer's (or title insurer's agent's) file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys.
- (b) Access to Property: Seller shall provide reasonable access to the Property (including working, existing utilities) through the earlier of Closing or possession by Buyer. To the extent applicable, Seller shall also be responsible for timely clearing that portion of the Property required by the County to perform tests, inspections and/or evaluations to determine the suitability of the Property for a sewage system and/or private drinking water well. See Other Condition Addendum.
- (c) Removal of Seller's Property: Seller shall remove, by the date possession is made available to Buyer, all personal property which is not a part of the purchase and all garbage and debris from the Property.
- (d) Affidavit and Indemnification Agreement: Seller shall furnish at Settlement an affidavit and indemnification agreement in form satisfactory to Buyer and Buyer's title insurer, if any, executed by Seller and any person or entity who has performed or furnished labor, services, materials or rental equipment as described in N.C.G.S. §44A-8 to the Property within 120 days prior to the date of Settlement verifying that each such person or entity has been paid in full and agreeing to indemnify Buyer, Buyer's lender(s) and Buyer's title insurer against all loss from any cause or claim arising therefrom.
- (e) Payment and Satisfaction of Liens: All deeds of trust, liens and other charges against the Property, not assumed by Buyer, must be paid and satisfied by Seller prior to or at Settlement such that cancellation may be promptly obtained following Closing. Seller shall remain obligated to obtain any such cancellations following Closing.
- (f) Title, Legal Access: Seller shall execute and deliver a GENERAL WARRANTY DEED for the Property at Settlement unless otherwise stated herein, which shall convey fee simple marketable and insurable title, free of all encumbrances except: ad valorem taxes for the current year (prorated through the date of Settlement); utility easements and unviolated restrictive covenants that do not materially affect the value of the Property; and such other encumbrances as may be assumed or specifically approved by Buyer in writing. The Property must have legal access to a public right of way.
- (g) Deed, Excise Taxes: Seller shall pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to perform Seller's obligations under this Contract, and for state and county excise taxes required by law. The deed is to be made to: William S. Hansen and Danelle A. Hansen, or assigns.
- (h) Agreement to Pay Buyer Expenses: Seller shall not pay any of Buyer's expenses associated with the purchase of the Property at Settlement.
- (i) Payment of Confirmed Special Assessments: Seller shall pay all Confirmed Special Assessments, if any, provided that the amount thereof can be reasonably determined or estimated.
- (j) Late Listing Penalties: All property tax late listing penalties, if any, shall be paid by Seller.
- (k) Owners' Association Disclosure and Addendum (Standard Form 2A12-T): If applicable, Seller shall provide the completed Owners' Association Disclosure and Addendum (Standard Form 2A12-T) to Buyer on or before the Effective Date.
- (1) Seller's Failure to Comply or Breach: If Seller fails to materially comply with any of Seller's obligations under this Paragraph 6 or Seller materially breaches this Contract, and Buyer elects to terminate this Contract as a result of such failure or breach, then

{12407873} Buyer initials	011		
Buyer initials	VII	Seller initials	
			Page 5 o

the Earnest Money Deposit and the Due Diligence Fee shall be refunded to Buyer and Seller shall reimburse to Buyer the reasonable costs actually incurred by Buyer in connection with Buyer's Due Diligence without affecting any other remedies.

- 7. PRORATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS: Unless otherwise provided, the following items shall be prorated through the date of Settlement and either adjusted between the parties or paid at Settlement:
 - (a) Taxes on Real Property: Ad valorem taxes on real property shall be prorated on a calendar year basis;

(b) Rents: Rents, if any, for the Property;

- (c) Dues: Owners' association regular assessments (dues) and other like charges.
- 8. CONDITION OF PROPERTY AT CLOSING: The Property must be in substantially the same or better condition at Closing as on the date of this offer, reasonable wear and tear excepted.
- RISK OF LOSS: The risk of loss or damage by fire or other casualty prior to Closing shall be upon Seller. If the improvements on the Property are destroyed or materially damaged prior to Closing, Buyer may terminate this Contract by written notice delivered to Seller or Seller's agent and the Earnest Money Deposit and any Due Diligence Fee shall be refunded to Buyer. In the event Buyer does NOT elect to terminate this Contract, Buyer shall be entitled to receive, in addition to the Property, any of Seller's insurance proceeds payable on account of the damage or destruction applicable to the Property being purchased. Seller is advised not to cancel existing insurance on the Property until after confirming recordation of the deed.
- 10. DELAY IN SETTLEMENT/CLOSING: Absent agreement to the contrary in this Contract or any subsequent modification thereto, if a party is unable to complete Settlement by the Settlement Date but intends to complete the transaction and is acting in good faith and with reasonable diligence to proceed to Settlement ("Delaying Party"), and if the other party is ready, willing and able to complete Settlement on the Settlement Date ("Non-Delaying Party") then the Delaying Party shall give as much notice as possible to the Non-Delaying Party and settlement agent and shall be entitled to a delay in Settlement. If the parties fail to complete Settlement and Closing within fourteen (14) days of the Settlement Date, or to further extend the Settlement Date by written agreement, then the Delaying Party shall be in breach and the Non-Delaying Party may terminate this Contract and shall be entitled to enforce any remedies available to such party under this Contract for the breach.
- 11. POSSESSION: Unless otherwise provided herein, possession shall be delivered at Closing. No alterations, excavations, tree or vegetation removal or other such activities may be done before possession is delivered.
- 12. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS: CHECK ALL STANDARD ADDENDA THAT MAY BE A PART OF THIS CONTRACT, IF ANY, AND ATTACH HERETO. ITEMIZE ALL OTHER ADDENDA TO THIS CONTRACT, IF ANY, AND ATTACH HERETO. (NOTE: UNDER NORTH CAROLINA LAW, REAL ESTATE BROKERS ARE NOT PERMITTED TO DRAFT CONDITIONS OR CONTINGENCIES TO THIS CONTRACT.)

X Additional Provisions Addendum ☐ Back-Up Contract Addendum (Form 2A1-T) ☐ Contingent Sale Addendum (Form 2A2-T)	 □ Loan Assumption Addendum (Form 2A6-T) □ Owners' Association Disclosure And Addendum (Form 2A12-T) □ Seller Financing Addendum (Form 2A5-T) □ Short Sale Addendum (Form 2A14-T)
---	---

- 13. ASSIGNMENTS: This Contract may not be assigned without the written consent of all parties, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, except in connection with a tax- deferred exchange, but if assigned by agreement, then this Contract shall be binding on the assignee and assignee's heirs and successors.
- 14. TAX-DEFERRED EXCHANGE: In the event Buyer or Seller desires to effect a tax-deferred exchange in connection with the conveyance of the Property, Buyer and Seller agree to cooperate in effecting such exchange; provided, however, that the exchanging party shall be responsible for all additional costs associated with such exchange, and provided further, that a non-exchanging party shall not assume any additional liability with respect to such tax-deferred exchange. Buyer and Seller shall execute such additional documents, including assignment of this Contract in connection therewith, at no cost to the non-exchanging party, as shall be required to give effect to this provision.

Buyer initials WM DH	Seller initials
	Page 6 of 8

- 15. PARTIES: This Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of Buyer and Seller and their respective heirs, successors and assigns. As used herein, words in the singular include the plural and the masculine includes the feminine and neuter genders, as appropriate.
- 16. **SURVIVAL:** If any provision herein contained which by its nature and effect is required to be observed, kept or performed after the Closing, it shall survive the Closing and remain binding upon and for the benefit of the parties hereto until fully observed, kept or performed.
- 17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no representations, inducements or other provisions other than those expressed herein. All changes, additions or deletions hereto must be in writing and signed by all parties. Nothing contained herein shall alter any agreement between a REALTOR® or broker and Seller or Buyer as contained in any listing agreement, buyer agency agreement, or any other agency agreement between them.
- 18. NOTICE: Any notice or communication to be given to a party herein may be given to the party or to such party's agent. Any written notice or communication in connection with the transaction contemplated by this Contract may be given to a party or a party's agent by sending or transmitting it to any mailing address, e-mail address or fax number set forth in the "Notice Information" section below. Seller and Buyer agree that the "Notice Information" and "Escrow Acknowledgment" sections below shall not constitute a material part of this Contract, and that the addition or modification of any information therein shall not constitute a rejection of an offer or the creation of a counteroffer.
- 19. **EXECUTION**: This Contract may be signed in multiple originals or counterparts, all of which together constitute one and the same instrument, and the parties adopt as their seals the word "SEAL" beside their signatures below.
- 20. **COMPUTATION OF DAYS**: Unless otherwise provided, for purposes of this Contract, the term "days" shall mean consecutive calendar days, including Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, whether federal, state, local or religious. For the purposes of calculating days, the count of "days" shall begin on the day following the day upon which any act or notice as provided in this Contract was required to be performed or made.

THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®, INC. AND THE NORTH CAROLINA BAR ASSOCIATION MAKE NO REPRESENTATION AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS FORM IN ANY SPECIFIC TRANSACTION. IF YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND THIS FORM OR FEEL THAT IT DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR YOUR LEGAL NEEDS, YOU SHOULD CONSULT A NORTH CAROLINA REAL ESTATE ATTORNEY BEFORE YOU SIGN IT.

This offer shall become a binding contract on the Effective Date.		
Date: 4/8/202/	Date:	-
Buyer G. Hangen (SEAL)	Entity Seller(Firefly Cove Property	SEAL)
William S. Hansen	Owners Association, Inc.	
Date: 4/8/2021	Ву:	-
Buyer Danelle Cl. Hansen (SEAL)	Title:	_(SEAL)
812407873} Buyer initials Seller initials	of 9	

NOTICE INFORMATION

(NOTE: INSERT THE ADDRESS AND/OR ELECTRONIC DELIVERY ADDRESS EACH PARTY AND AGENT APPROVES FOR THE RECEIPT OF ANY NOTICE CONTEMPLATED BY THIS CONTRACT. INSERT "N/A" FOR ANY WHICH ARE NOT APPROVED.)

BUYER NOTICE ADDRESS:	SELLER NOTICE ADDRESS:
Mailing Address:	Mailing Address:
128 Lakeway Drive	P.O. Box 303
Mills River NC 28759	Lake Lure, NC 28745
Buyer Telephone:(828) 255-0271 279 615 3	Seller Telephone:
Buyer E-mail Address: bhansen@parsecfinancial.com	Seller E-mail Address: fireflycovesec@gmail.com
	OF INITIAL EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT est Money Deposit and agrees to hold and disburse the same i
Date T/V/21	Firm: DEUTSCH & GOTSCHALK PA
	By: (Simulation)
	(Signature)
DITHIS FORM OR STELL THAT IT DOES OUT PROVIDE	Modera T. DEUTSCH (Print name)
	William S. Hamen
	The Contract of the same of th

Page 8 of 8

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS ADDENDUM

The parties agree to the Additional Provisions set forth below relative to the Offer to Purchase and Contract ("Contract") for Lot 56, Firefly Cove, Lake Lure, NC ("Property") by and between Firefly Cove Property Owners Association, Inc. ("Seller") and William S. Hansen and Danelle A. Hansen ("Buyers").

- 1. Contract is contingent upon Buyer's ability to negotiate and execute an acceptable Right-of-Way or shared driveway Easement Agreement to Sheridan Lane.
- Contract is contingent upon written confirmation from Seller that the Property will be a part of Firefly Cove Subdivision and that Buyer will be able to use its amenities subject to applicable covenants.
- 3. Contract is contingent upon confirmation that Buyer can tap the Firefly Cove public sewer for residential use. (Availability of public sewer indicated on appraisal prepared for Seller dated November 7, 2018).
- 4. Seller shall be responsible for obtaining all governmental or other approvals related to the transaction, including but not limited to sewer or septic approval, amendment of the subdivision covenants, restrictions, conditions, or related instruments and recording of all required documentation. Buyer and Seller will equally share all costs associated with obtaining the sewer or septic tank approvals. Buyer will assist Seller as needed in order to obtain such sewer or septic tank approval.
- 5. Contract is contingent upon written confirmation that Seller agrees to waive POA fees until the earlier date: 1) Buyer begins residential construction on the Property or 2) the first day of the calendar quarter beginning three (3) years after the date of closing on the Property.

By:

Title:

Buyers:

William S. Hansen

Danelle A. Hansen

Seller: Firefly Cove Property Owners Association, Inc.